BATTLELINES™ FAQ
Version 1.1 7/21/03 (new additions are highlighted)
GLOSSARY

The following definitions and descriptions are for quick reference.  In many cases, refer to the rule book for a more detailed explanation of a term.

Card Text

Advance: Move a card or stack of cards from a friendly-controlled location to an adjacent enemy-controlled location.

Assemble: Place any number of Formation and/or Attachment cards from the hand to stack 
at a location. All friendly cards at the location must meet the requirements for stacking.

Barrage: Allows an indirect fire attack by a formation against an enemy formation in the same location or adjacent location if the formation is an Artillery card.

Bomb: Aircraft makes an attack without a second fire response by the target enemy formation.  The attack can be made in any location that the Aircraft can spot the target (Target Cover # or less).

Cancel: Card of the indicated type is cancelled before it can attack.

Combat: Allows a Formation card to attack.

Combat if Defender: A formation in the Defend position makes an Attack and is awarded First Fire.  This award of First Fire without a competitive draw represents hidden sighted guns covering the lines of approach that can engage the enemy with a measure of choice in the action.
Commit: A Formation card of exactly the same group as the headquarters card may be retrieved from the discard pile and stacked with the headquarters card. This represents a regimental command mustering its forces to accomplish the mission it is committed to perform.
Eliminate card: Indicated card is placed in the discard pile or in the victory point pile if it is an enemy card with a victory point symbol.

Enemy Discards: Your opponent discards the type of card indicated if it is in his hand.

Enemy Sets Orders: Your opponent resets his orders to the number indicated.

Enemy Wastes: Your opponent takes the indicated number of cards from his Unit Deck and places them into the discard pile.

Flank: Allows a formation to occupy a Flank position.

Forage: Player draws an extra card or cards.



In Contact: The enemy target formation is in the same location as your formations.

Infiltrate: Allows a formation to occupy an Infiltration position.

Initiative: The player makes indicated number of Orders Checks and adds that total to his orders for the turn.

Interdict: Aircraft makes a shock attack against an unengaged enemy formation.

March: Move a formation or stack of formations to an adjacent friendly-controlled location.

Observer: Call in an indirect fire attack from a Formation card with indirect fire capability, even if already marked. Only Artillery formations may fire on enemy formations in an adjacent location. Non-artillery units with an indirect fire capability may only attack in the same location. 

Plan: Player rearranges indicated number of the top cards in the Unit Deck.  Planning is not considered Drawing cards.  
Shock Attack: Allows a card to make a Shock attack. The Shock Combat check determines if the attack succeeds, with a (-) Combat Check value causing the attack to miss completely.
Strike: Aircraft makes a shock attack against an enemy formation card in contact.
Target (Artillery): This text can target the card specified regardless of its position in a stack.  It doesn’t have to be on top.  
Waste: Oponent discards the number of indicated cards from the top of their Unit Deck.
Card Terms

Chance Number: The number in a die symbol on the lower left corner of the cards.  It is used to determine success or failure of various actions during the game, particularly Chance Checks.
Control Cost: A white flag symbol with a number on a location card.  If present, it represents the amount of orders that must be expended at one time to change the locations controlling side.

Cover Modifiers: A tree symbol with a number that represent or increases the amount of cover in a location or for a given formation.

Defense Modifiers: Defense modifiers are symbols on cards that apply to increasing the defensive total of defending formation.  The symbols are Helmet, Shield, Square, and Hexagon.

Helmet (with orange circle value): Defensive modifier applied to the defense of a formation.  Attachment cards add this value to the formation their formations defense.  Helmet defense modifiers on Battlefield cards apply to formations occupying the Defend position of a Location.  The helmets on a Location card apply to all formations in the position they occupy at a Location card.
Square (blue, green, yellow, red): Defensive modifier applied to all formations in a stack at a location. A stack occupies a position.
Shield (blue): The defensive value for armored units.  This symbol may also be present in a location giving a negative modifier to the defense value of armored units.

Hexagon (green): The defensive value for unarmored and other soft targets.

Diamond Symbol: A Group Symbol that represents “wild card symbol” that may be stacked with other cards having Diamond and/or one other Group Symbol.

Group Symbol: The symbol in the upper left corner of a Formation card or Attachment card representing the same military organization.  Only units with the same Group Symbol and/or a Diamond symbol may reside together in a stack.

Hit #: Text on the Result Bar that represents the number of hits a formation has taken from a combat result.

Hold on ###: Text on the Result Bar that determines if a formation remains in position.  Not drawing a matching Chance Check causes the formation to be withdrawn. Any results with # Hit in the result bar are withdrawn with the lost formation.
Hit Symbols: A national emblem in a circle that determines the number of hits a formation can withstand before being eliminated.  If a formation has as many hit results attached as are available in the formation, the formation is destroyed and awarded as victory points to the formations opponent. (i.e. A formation with 4 Hit Symbols requires a total of 4 or more Hit results to destroy the formation.)
Location Restrictions: Symbols on location cards (Bridge, Parachute, Railroad Engine) that place restrictions on certain cards for play on those locations containing such symbols.

Orders: The base number of actions allotted to a player in a given turn.  The number of orders is found in an envelope symbol in the lower right hand corner of a card.

Result Bar: A bar at the bottom of each card with inverted text that determines whether a unit is hit or holds.

General Terms

Attachment: A card category made up of Company cards and Leader cards.  The Attachment cards have a purple border.  One Company card and or one Leader card can be attached to a Formation card.

Attacker: Any card or side executing Combat is called “attacker”, “attacking card”, or “attacking side”.

Chance Check: A Chance check is performed by drawing a card and referring to the Chance Number.  If the Chance Number on the card pulled is the same as the Chance Check required by a card action, the Chance Check passes and the action or text may be performed.  If the number does not match, the Chance Check fails.  Chance Checks are shown on the cards by using a small die with a number in it if the Chance Check is required for the use of a line of card text. When a formation is attempting to Hold on #,#,# a single Chance Check must match the common number on all results cards.
Check: Any time a check called for in the Battlelines™, the card providing the check value is drawn from the unit deck and discarded into the discard pile after the check number is used.
Contact: If a location contains formations from both sides, those formations are “in contact.”
Control: The player in control of a location has the defend position of the location readable by the player that holds the location.  Control of a location is gained by having unengaged formations in a location and paying any required Control Cost to take control of the location.

Defender: Any formation being attacked is a defender and may be referred to as the “defender,” “defending side” or “target.”
Discard Pile: A place next to the draw pile where played cards are placed after use or discard.  Players may examine their own discard pile at any time.
Draw: The action of taking a card from your Unit Deck or Reinforcement Deck and placing it in your hand.
Draw Pile: This is where your shuffled Unit Deck of cards is placed (face down) at the start of a mission/game.
Formation: A group of cards consisting of a single Formation card and up to one attached Leader card and/or Company card.

Formation Card: A category of card (blue or gold border) representing Troop cards, Headquarters cards, or Artillery cards.

Location: A named card placed at random or as directed by a Mission card. Locations have 4 positions: Attack, Defend, Infiltrate, and Flank.

Position: One of four sides of a Location card where formations may reside.
Attack Position: This is the ground the enemy has to cross to approach the location.
Defend Position: This is the best ground to defend the location.
Infiltrate Position: This is the ground crossed to approach the location by stealth.
Flank Position: This is the ground crossed to approach the location by maneuver.
Stack: A stack is a single formation or group of formations that reside in one position of a Location card.  There may be any number of formations in a stack located in a defend or attack position of a Location card.  Only one formation may reside in a flank or infiltrate position of a Location card.

Stacking: The placement of more than one formation card (including any attachments) from a side in the same location.  Cards stacked in one location must all have the same Group Symbol and/or Diamond Symbol.

Target: The formation being attacked.

Top Card/Top Formation: Stacks have a top formation which is used for targeting attacks, strikes, bombings, etcetera.  The top formation of the stack is the most exposed formation.
Unengaged: A location containing formations from only one side.  Formations that are unengaged may or may not be in control of the location.

Unit: All cards in a deck from the same primary organization and one higher headquarters organization.

Victory Point Pile: A place where an opponent’s eliminated cards, captured locations with victory point value and completed mission cards and the winning location cards are kept for victory point accounting.

Withdrawal Area: An area behind the lines where you place withdrawn units/formations.

Combat Terms

Chevrons: Colored stripes with numbers indicating the Combat Value of a card.  Different colored chevrons allow for different types of attacks.

Direct Fire: The blue and green values are direct fire values that are applied using Combat or Bomb.
Indirect Fire: The high angle fire used to shell enemy formations using Barrage or Observer
Shock Attack: These attacks are huge or miss and are applied with Sappers, Rockets, Strike or Interdict.
Combat Value: An attack number determined by adding the appropriate chevron value to any similar attack modifiers provided by attachment cards.  It is compared against the Defense Value to determine the success of an attack.
Defensive Value: A defense number determined by adding together appropriate defensive modifiers of a formation.  It is compared against the Combat Value to determine if a formation receives any Result cards.
Direct Fire Attack: Combat between ground units that use the green or blue chevron to determine a combat value.

Eliminated: A formations that match or exceed their hits are removed from play and placed in the opponent’s Victory Point Pile.  This will include Attachment cards in the formation.
First Fire: The formation firing first in a Direct Fire Attack.  If a defending formation survives First Fire, it will have a chance to return Second Fire.
First Fire Check: To determine which formation fires first in a case where two formations capable of direct fire can exchange shots, compare the cover value plus a chance check to determine who shoots first. The highest value wins and ties result in an exchange of fire at the same time.
Result Cards: Cards pulled to determine if an attacked formation receives any hits and can hold the line.  The number of result cards pulled depends on the ratio of Combat Value to Defense Value.

Hold: A unit that remains in a location after successfully passing a Chance Check due to a combat result is holding and remains in its current position.

Indirect Fire Attack: Combat using yellow chevrons to determine a combat.  The attack is automatic without a First Fire Check and there is no Second Fire.

Second Fire: A formation that was not eliminated or withdrawn as a result of First Fire may return fire.

Shock Attack: Shock Attack is combat initiated by special weapons using the red chevron to determine a combat value.  The attack is automatic without a First Fire Check and there is no Second Fire.  Shock Attacks that pull a minus on the Combat Check miss.
Withdraw/Withdrawal/Withdrawn: Removing a card from a location to the withdrawal area as a result of failing a chance check due to text on a result bar.
Deck Decriptions and Card Types
Reinforcement Deck: The pile of cards designated as reinforcments on the Operation Card.  Refer to rules for selection and placement.
Operations Deck: This deck is used to set up a mission/operation consists of the following card Types:

· Location Cards: Used to set up a mission.
· Base Location: Gray square with red or blue symbol representing the attackers base of operations.

· East Bank Location: Locations speified in a mission (currently) unreachable, to or from, by movement.
· Objective Location: Gray sqare with red or blue symbol representing the attackers objective.
· Mission Cards: Used to pull missions for play during an operation.

· Promotional Cards: Higher Echeleon cards that may be incorporated in a Unit Deck.

· Reference Cards: Explaining the cards in detail (not used during the game).
· Reinforcment Cards: These are separated and used to form their own Reinforcement Deck (see above).

Unit Deck: This is your draw pile of cards that will form your starting hand, initial placements, and card draws. Unit decks consist of the following card types:

· Action Cards (orange border): Aircraft, Maneuver, and Tactics 

· Attachment Cards (purple border): Leaders and Companies that can become part of a formation.
· Battlefield Cards (green border): Various

· Formation Cards (blue or gold border): Troops, Headquarters, and Artillery

· Fortune Cards (gray border): Confusion, Fog of War, and Intelligence
· Reference Cards: Explaining the cards in detail (not used during the game).
Upper Echelon Deck: This is a deck of specialized units and cards to be released in the future that you will be able to incorporate into your Unit Deck.
Q & A
MODIFIERS

Q: How do defense modifiers (Colored Square on top of cards) and cover modifiers (tree symbols) work.

A: Defense modifiers are affected by stacking rules.  Each of the three attacking positions; attack, infiltrate and flank are treated as a separate stack when targeted, each having a top formation.  Two of these positions; flank and infiltrate, can only have a top formation as they are single formation positions.  A defensive modifier would apply as follows:

· Defensive Modifiers (colored square) on an attachment card such as a leader (for example: Captain Schaeffer SOS 100th Jagers, or Antiaircraft Machine Guns SOS 112th) give the defensive benefit to any formation in a stack where it resides, not just to the formation card to which it is attached. These apply to the attack and defend positions of the location.

· Defensive Modifiers when attached to a formation in a flank or infiltrate position of a location give the modifier only to the formation in that position (since only one formation may occupy such a position).

· Cover Modifiers (tree symbol) on an attachment (such as the Shock Company SoS 100th) only give the cover benefit to the formation on which it is attached regardless of location. 

Q: If the top formation has additional cover on its card will an aircraft which only attacks cover 3 or less attack the next unit in the stack if it does not have additional cover?
A: Only the top formation is exposed to the aircraft and if he isn't exposed, then there is no legal target in that location.  If one hides, they all hide.

STACKING

The stacking restriction (namely only one group allowed plus the diamond wild cards), all positions on a location card are considered to be the same position for the purpose of stacking restrictions. For the purposes of the enemy targeting, each of the three attacking positions - attack/infiltrate/flank - is treated as a separate stack with a top formation, though two of these positions (flank/infiltrate) can only have a top formation as they are single formation positions.


Q: This brings up the following: I advance/move my "heart" symbol formation to a Flank via successful chance check. Can I now advance my "moon" symbol formation from a rear friendly controlled location into the new location center where the "heart" symbol unit used to be (two different formation symbols now at different areas of the same location)? 
A: No.  One Location = One Stack.  Flank and Infiltrate Positions = One Formation.  Positions are: 
- Defend (The only positions a defender can be in.)

- Attack (The worst position an attacker can be in.)
- Infiltrate and Flank (Better positions achieved through card text, representing movement of a tactical nature.)

So, if I have a formation in the Flank Position, the Infiltrate Position and the Attack Position, all of them must make a legal stack that happens to have three top formations and the choice of which top formation to shoot at is the defenders. If I have Hearts in the location I can add all the diamonds I have, but not a Trefoil since it is a different non-Diamond formation.

Q: Stacking rules specify that all formations in a location must belong to the same group symbol (or the wild card diamond group).  Does this apply to flank and infiltrate positions on the location card as well? 

A: The formations of a given side must be a legal stack no matter where that is in the location. Formations in a location are all still part of the stack regardless of their position at the location. 

Q: How many leaders or companies can be attached to a formation card?

A: Only one leader and/or one company may be attached to a formation card.
Q: At what point can the positions of formations in a stack be altered?

A: Stacking order can be changed anytime during your turn.  It is not considered movement and requires no order.  It cannot be changed during combat. You cannot change stacking order when it is not your turn.


Q: When using an order (or text such as Assemble) to play a stack from the hand to an objective/base, do the attachments have to be already allocated (attached) to a unit in the stack, or can you play the lot and then decided where to attach the company and leader cards?
A: You can do it either way.  Once the attachment is declared however, it may not be changed to a different card.

CARD TEXT

Q: Does the unit using a text to eliminate a Battlefield card have to be in the same location as the card that is being removed?  If the chance check is successful and the card is removed, does the player removing the card get the points (if any) for it? 
A: Yes and Yes. (But the owner of a card never gets any points for eliminating his own card.)
BARRAGE
Q: When an artillery formation has a Barrage – Target Artillery at a text line, is it prevented from attacking artillery formations hiding underneath other formations?

A: No, the “Target” keyword specifically allows targeting of artillery regardless of its position in a stack or formation.  This is because of counter battery ability where flash and sound ranging equipments were used to fire at the muzzle flashes of enemy artillery.  The artillery is effectively shooting at a spot on a map known to be occupied by enemy artillery.
Q: I had the 385th Mortar Batt with a 7.6 Field Gun attachment. The attachment provides an additional 2 indirect fire and Barrage text. When I use the text on the Field Gun first, do I add the value of the chevron from the 385th to the Barrage? Now the same question in reverse. If I just use the barrage text on the 7.6 field guns does the 385th mortar add to it’s yellow chevron?
A: In both cases, the formation is the only card firing and the 7.6cm Field Gun modifies the indirect fire value of the 385th Mortar Battalion.  The formation fires once for each Barrage text regardless of which card the text is physically on. 
COMBAT IF DEFENDER
Q: How does the Combat If Defender text work?

A: If your formation is in the defend position, you may perform any required Chance Check to see if you may attack first as the defender.  If you are successful, the attack is immediate.  You get First Fire and there is no additional Chance Check.  If the attacked unit survives, it may still return Second Fire if it is able to do so.

Q: Regarding "Combat if Defender". Can the defender attack without using a card with this phrase? If so, is there a normal first fire check?

A: The game has three general cases for combat.
Mutual fire - (First shooter is determined by a First Fire check and ties are simultaneous shots) - Combat card text.
Preemptive fire - (The first fire check is won by succeeding on the Chance Check required to Preempt but return fire occurs if the Defender survives) - Combat if Defender card texts are an example of this.
Singular Fire - (Only the attacker shoots) - Singular Fire, such as Barrage, Observer, Shock Attack if Infiltrated and Aircraft card text attack with no First Fire check and  receive no Second Fire.


MARCH/ADVANCE
Q: How does March/Advance work when ordering a stack?

A: You don't give an order to a stack of formations, only to a single formation, which might choose to perform a march/advance text and then bring other formations in the stack with the ordered formation. It comes to the same thing but avoids confusion when you need to interpret other texts which don't apply to other formations in the stack.


Q: If you activate a formation with March 2, can it: 
1. move to a friendly location, add some formations to the stack and then move to a second friendly location? 
A: YES
2. move to a friendly location, drop some formations from the stack and then move to a second friendly location.
A: YES
Q: If you activate a formation with March and Advance, can it: 
1. move to a friendly location, add some formations to the stack and then move to an enemy location?
A: YES
2. move to a friendly location, drop some formations from the stack and then move to an enemy location? 
A: YES


Q: I have a stack in a controlled location with enemy units in attack/infiltrate and/or flanks areas. Can I advance (through these units) to an enemy location in their rear?  If so, can I then march back to the original location? 

A: YES and MAYBE. The first part is correct, however it never matters why one side or the other is in sole control of the location it only matters that they are, and that there is no unpaid occupation cost. When sole control occurs the location is captured.  If you leave the location vacant even temporarily, your opponent will gain control of it if he has any units there. In the case of a location with a control flag, you would retain control if you left it temporarily vacant and then returned, since the opponent wouldn't be able to gain control of it until expending the number of orders shown on the flag. 


Q: When a formation has already performed its card text, it can still be used to march/advance via another card text if part of a stack (page 17). Can this stack be employed at any time?
A: When an order marker is place on a formation to use its card text it prevents using the cards text twice in one turn. It does not limit the movement or combat of the card at all. Since card text must be used to accomplish the movement or combat of a card in play Tactics cards are very useful to continue an attack exploit a movement opportunity. Stacking is a non-ordered action and formations may join the legal stack as part of the movement being performed by another card.

COMMIT
Q: Can Commit be used to call up a company or Leader of the same symbol as the HQ? The rules only talk about formations but attachments can be part of a formation.
A: The Commit only brings in Formation cards from the discard pile. Assemble since it comes out of the hand and is part of major Headquarters can place Attachments in addition to Formations.  
Q: Can I commit or assemble units to a location that is under enemy control? 

A: The status of the location has no effect on the cards entering play, only stacking rules matter.

Q: Is there any way to Commit diamond symbol formation cards back into play?

A: No, there are no headquarters with a diamond group symbol that have Commit in the card text.


OBSERVER

Q: How many indirect fire attacks can be created by one Observer text?

A: Currently, only one.  Observer text pulls fire to the location where the observer is. Barrage pushes fire at adjacent locations or the same location as the shooter. The multiple artillery attacks on one target will be part of American artillery behavior. They have Time on Target ability so multiple arty will fire at one target. The forces that are available now do not have this ability.


Q: How does Observer text work?

A: Observer text pulls fire to the location where the observer is.  Observer allows an indirect fire attack from either artillery cards, or non-artillery cards that have indirect fire capability. Only artillery cards may be used if called in from an adjacent location. (Any text on the artillery card used for the indirect attack does not apply.)


Q: If you have two observers and one artillery unit, can you barrage an enemy unit once and then use both observers to fire that artillery again (twice) at the same enemy unit?

A: Yes.

COMBAT
Q: In combat, how is combat in a stack resolved?

A: Combat is an order text on a Formation card, Attachment card or Tactics card. Combat occurs between the Attacking Formation and the Defending Formation. Combat is always one on one. Combat is modified by any Attachment cards, Location cards, Battlefield cards or Tactics cards and one Combat Check drawn from your unit deck. Stacking affects which formations interact with each other not the magnitude of the combat.  Several Combats can occur in one turn. The attacking formation can be anywhere in the stack.  The card used to initiate combat attacks the top formation. That card, when able to fire during this combat, always attacks the card that initiates the combat.

Q: A combat question. I have a formation with 1Formation card with 1 Leader card and 1Company card attached. They are in a location which the enemy controls. I activate the text with an order. All 3 cards have the line "combat" on it. Can I attack an enemy unit 3 times with this formation using the combat text on the Leader card, the combat text on the Formation card, and the combat text on the Company card?

A: Yes, that's correct. And, if you have a formation with a leader and a company and they all have the text "Observer" then you can fire the same adjacent artillery unit three times in a row if you like.

Q: Do I have to bomb the top formation in a stack or can I target any card in a stack?

A: Aircraft target the top formation in a stack.

Q: When attacking with an aircraft that has a green and blue chevron (instead of a red shock one) which chevron is used and does the attacked formation get to return fire?

A: Use the chevron corresponding to the type of unit attacked (it uses the color of the defense hex or shield on the unit).  There is no First Fire Check or Second Fire against the aircraft.

Q: Which unit’s deck are result cards drawn from?

A: Your deck is used to apply the results of fire on your units.

Q: Which “top” formation can be attacked if there are formations in the attack infiltrate and flank positions of a location?

A: Choose any “top” formation you wish to fire at if there is more than one top formation at a location.

Q: When an attack is declared, can only the top formation attack?  

A: No.  Any formation in a stack of attacking formations may be used to attack if the card text allows it to do so.  And, the attacking formation does not have to be moved to the top of a stack to attack.  Only the top formation of a defending stack may be attacked, unless specified by a Target keyword in the card text.  The defending formation may fire at the attacking formation regardless of where the attacking formation is in the stack.

HOLDING
Q: If a formation has no “Hit” text only “Hold” text on a revealed result cards, does the formation still have to perform a hold check?

A: Yes. What I think has confused you is the difference between Hits and result cards.  When you take a result card regardless if you take any damage from that result card or not you still have to do one chance check against the hold numbers on the result card.  If you don't get a matching number on the chance check the unit is withdrawn, and if it has any damage it will not be able to return later in the operation unless you have a suitable "remove hits” card. If the Hold Check succeeds a result that scores a Hit attaches to the formation and remains in effect for subsequent Hold Checks, as well as, counting for accumulated damage.


TEXT ORDER

Q: How is text resolved?

A: All text on the cards is performed in the order it is written, with Leaders first followed by the Formation and finally that on the Company.  An order given to a formation allows activation of all the text.   So, given the following...

Leader

Major General 112th Rifle Division
Text A

Forage – Draw 3 Discard 1
Text B

Plan 4 – Reorder 4 cards
Formation
112th Scout Battalion
Text C

March 1 or Advance 1
Text D

[3] Infiltrate
Text E

Combat
Text F

[3] Advance 1
Company
Sapper Company

Text G

[5] Shock Attack if Infiltrated
Text H

[4] Eliminate Battlefield card

You perform the text in the order it is listed. All text is elective with the exception of restrictions such as [Parachute] play at Location. So, if you chose A,C,D,F,H (all paid for with one order) you cannot go back and do B,E or G.

FIRST FIRE

Q: Does a unit that fires first with Combat if Defender gets fire returned to it (second fire) by a surviving unit it attacked?

A: Yes

Q: When a card is attacked it always gets the defense modifier on the location card (as well as the defense modifier of any friendly card at that location). It doesn't matter which side initiated the combat. Of course, the attacker usually is sitting in a part of the location where the defense modifier is zero.
A: Yes
ORDERS

Q: Do unused orders carry over from turn to turn?

A: No.


Q: One order can "Place a formation or attachment or a stack of these from hand...” Is that a formation plus attachments in a stack or stack of formations (possibly plus attachments)?  Do you get to place a load of cards with just one order (within stacking restrictions, of course)?

A: Yes, one order can place any number of formations or attachments. The Unit Headquarters using the Assemble card text also works this way, so one order is used in either case.


PLAN
Q: Can the Plan text be used to look at and reorder the cards in the Reinforcement Deck?
A: No, the rules specifically state that Plan cards are drawn from the top of the Unit Deck.

Q: Must I Plan the exact number of cards the text shows, or can I draw/reorder up to the number shown if desired?

A: You must Plan the number shown or as many as possible up to that number.  If there are fewer cards remaining to plan than the text shows, you draw all cards that remain.  The decision is whether to Plan or not.  Planning is not considered a draw per se, but rather it is a reordering of cards.  If the last card in a deck is drawn for the reorder, the mission is not over since the cards are being returned for further potential use.  

FORAGE

Q: Must I Forage (draw to my hand) all the cards shown on the Forage text or can I draw fewer if desired?

A: You must Forage the number shown.  If there are fewer cards remaining than the number shown, you must draw all remaining cards.  The decision is whether to Forage or not.  Foraging is considered a card draw.  Note that this may end the mission if you have fewer cards to draw than shown on the Forage text.
TACTICS CARDS
Q: When playing a Tactics card, do you nominate a formation in play and then perform the text using that formation or can you use each text item of the Tactics card with a different formation?  For example, Press the Attack has:
  
[3] Infiltrate
  
Combat
  
[4] Advance 1

Could you attempt to infiltrate with one formation, fail the check and then choose to perform combat with a different formation; then finally advance a third formation?

A: Yes, this is legal and intended.  The only active card is the Tactics card. On page 21 Tactics Card, the only restriction is the location so any Formation card at a location can be used for any line of the card text found on the Tactics card.

BATTLEFIELD CARDS

Q: Is the minefield card able to kill a leader many locations away from where it is placed?

A: No, see page 20 “always apply at the text card’s location”.


EAST BANK

Q: Can only artillery cards be played in East Bank locations, and how do the East Bank locations work?

A: Any Soviet formations can be deployed in the East Bank locations.  No movement to or from the east bank locations is allowed. Also no attack except from Barrage or Aircraft may occur with forces in east bank locations.

Q: So should I only restrict myself to placing artillery in the East Bank?

A: Not necessarily. Artillery on their own can be targeted with that extra Barrage if target arty action by much German artillery. They also have low defense strengths. It could be handy to have another unit on top of the stack. 

FOG OF WAR
Q: In the rules under "Fog of War Card" p.23 it states "-the last results card on a formation card in the withdrawal area is removed the formation card and any attached cards are immediately placed in the discard pile available for the next mission."  Shouldn't one wait until the end of the mission to clear out the withdrawl area of unit cards with no hits on them? If you immediately put it in the discard pile, you could conceivably pull it back out into play with a "Commit" text. Is that the intent here? I don't think so since under "Ending a Mission" on p.27 it talks about cleaning out the withdrawl area of cards with no hits on them for the next mission. This leads me to believe that cards with or without hits stay in the withrawal area until the end of a mission. 
A: The rules on p.27 are correct.  You must wait until the end of the mission before moving any withdrawn units without hits back into your unit deck though in the case of diamond formation cards it doesn’t matter as there currently is no means to return them to play from the discard pile.

MEDIC
Q: Can I play a Medic card immediately after a result card with a hit has been drawn before I have to pull for the hold on # check, or does the hold check have to be resolved first?
A: No, the entire result bar is acted upon before the Medic can be played and applied.

Q: If an attack results in more than one hit card to be drawn, can I play my Medic card to remove the first (or second) hit card before a second (or third) is drawn?
A: No, all hit card results a played first, then the Chance Check is perfomed to see if the unit Holds.  This is all considered as part of the combat result and cannot be interrupted.  After the Chance Check, you may play the medic card.
INTELLIGENCE/AMBUSH

Q: A gray Intelligence/Ambush card is played that states, 'Enemy Discards 1 Troops card'. Does the discard come from his hand or from the battlefield? 
A: “Discards” come from the hand.  “Waste” comes from the Unit Deck.
WITHDRAWAL

Q: Can I activate text on units in the withdrawal area?

A: No.

Q: How can I get rid of a hit on a formation in the withdrawal area?

A: Only “fortune cards” will allow you to do this since they don’t specify location.  Medic is an example.

HOUSE RULES (with hopes of becoming official)


Initial Orders Draw – Instead of drawing a card for your 1st turn’s initial orders, use the orders shown on the last forced discard directed by the mission card setup. 
Mission Victory Point Allocation – In addition to point allocation as described in the rulebook, the attacker in a mission also gains the mission points for their base if the objective is contested when the mission end (i.e. you must have a formation at the objective location to contest it).  NOTE: This suggestion is currently under review by the designer.  It helps balance out the points during an operation yeilding a closer game, as well as encouraging a defender to defend forward of the objective rather than sit at the objective and wait for the mission to end.
Ending the Game – The game (or mission) ends when a player is forced to draw a card for any reason, but cannot.  Rationale: “I have found this method to eliminate many problems or arguments that can arise over issues ranging from combat results to location occupation.”
Known Card Errors
· 100th Jager Division Information Card (0006-100J-059) under the deck stats, the correct number of Fortune Cards in the deck should be 9 and not 6 as shown.
· I/436th Artillery Battalion (112th Rifle Division Deck card 0005-112R-018) should be the II/436th Artillery Battalion.  Treat it as such for deck construction purposes.
· 9th Panzer Division (0002-9Pz-001) has the box missing around the [3] for the Chance Check.
· Colonel 181th Tank Brigade (0011-18TC-028) should be 181st Tank Brigade.
Note, none of these card errors affect the play of the game.
Disclaimer:  Battlelines ™ refers to the game by the Lost Battalion Gaming Company ©2003 Billings Enterprises, LLC.

Many thanks are extended to those folk that have asked the questions and posted the answers in order to make this a better game.  Further thanks to Tom Kassel and Fen Yan for their contribution to the Glossary.  This Q&A file and glossary was produced by Walt Mulder and edited by Jeff Billings.  It serves to clarify unusual circumstances and enhance both the game and game play.


